
 

 

 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, DECEMBER 

4, 2017 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Mary Beth Stevenson mbstevenson115@gmail.com 
Council Member Tim Shields timshieldswbcc@yahoo.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick   leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
  

1. Alliant Energy Community Annual Report 
2. GIS Demonstration from Midland GIS 
3. USGS Streamgages and Wapsinonoc Creek 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:mbstevenson115@gmail.com
mailto:timshieldswbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

discuss any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one 

motion being made for all items on the Consent Agenda.  Then then item will be removed from the 

Consent Agenda, and will be separately considered and voted on.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting November 20, 2017. 
2. Resolution 1668 – A Resolution to welcome the Des Moines Register’s Annual Great 

Bicycle Ride Across Iowa (RAGBRAI) to Cedar County in 2018. 
3. Motion to Approve the Renewal of Liquor License for “Herb & Lou’s”, located at 105 

Downey Street, West Branch, IA. 
4. Resolution 1670 – A Resolution Approving Snow Removal on Parkside Drive, Second 

Street and Cedar Street for the United States Department of the Interior, National 
Park Service, Herbert Hoover National Historic Site.   

5. Motion to Approve the City of West Branch Parks and Recreation Phase 1 
Improvements – Certificate of Completion. 

6. Motion to Approve the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 2 Pay Estimate No. 3 
(final) 

7. Resolution 1669 – A Resolution to increase the Depository Limit at Community State 
Bank, A Depository of the City of West Branch. 

8. Approve Claims Report and Accept Recently Approved Bond Closing Letter. 
 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Ordinance 748 – (Second Reading) Amending the Zoning Code of the City of West 

Branch to Allow the Keeping of Urban Chickens. 
2. Ordinance 747 – (Third and Final Reading) Amending Chapter 165, entitled “Zoning 

Regulations”.  
3. Motion to Approve Plans and Specs; setting dates for hearing and letting for Cubby 

Park 
4. Resolution 1672 – Approving the Encroachment Agreement with Mid-America 

Pipeline Co., LLC 
5. Resolution 1671 – To Fix a Date of Meeting for a Public Hearing on Amending the 

Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018. 
6. Discussion: To Consider adding “GIS capabilities to Public Works” to our list Goals 

and Objectives. 
7. Motion to Continue the U.S. Geological Survey Stream and Precipitation Monitoring 

on the West Branch Wapsinonoc Creek 
8. Discussion: To Consider Freedom Rock Funding / Sponsorship. 

 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 

 Set time for City Administrator’s Evaluation (December 18th) 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 
 



 

 

(Special City Council Meeting Minutes)                Consent Item 1 
 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is 

available for inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-

videos. The minutes are not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               November 20, 
2017  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      5:30 p.m. 

  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  Mayor 

Laughlin  invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge 

of Allegiance.   Roll call: Mayor Laughlin was present.  Council members:  Tim Shields, Mary Beth 

Stevenson, and Jordan Ellyson were present.  Brian Pierce joined the meeting at 5:41 p.m.  Colton Miller 

was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff: City Administrator Redmond 

Jones, Deputy City Clerk Gordon Edgar, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Park & Recreation Director 

Melissa Russell and Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS. 

None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT. 

Pete Swisher, National Park Service Superintendent, reported that he met with officials of the 

National Park Service from Washington, Denver and Omaha to discuss storm water plans.  He 

expects the focus to be on archeological surveys next summer.  These must be completed before 

any storm water related construction work can begin.  He also reported that he met with Park & 

Rec Director Melissa Russell to discuss West Branch city trails.  He will have an intern working on 

GIS documents for the trails next summer.  

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION.  

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for Special City Council Meeting October 27, 2017; City 
Council Meeting November 6, 2017; and City Council Work Session – Goal Setting Meeting. 

2. Motion to Approve - The use of “Document Destruction & Recycling Services” for the Destruction 
of Records as required in the “Record Retention Manual for Iowa Cities”.  

3. Resolution 1662 – Adopting Goals and Objectives for the City of West Branch, Iowa for 2018-2019.  
4. Motion to Approve the Renewal of Liquor License for “Down Under”, located at 102 W. Main 

Street. 
5. Motion to Approve the North First Street Improvements – Change Order No. 3 (a credit of $852.68) 
6. Motion to Approve the North First Street Improvements – Pay Estimate No. 2. 
7. Motion to Approve the North First Street Improvements – Certificate of Completion  
8. Resolution 1663 – Authorizing and Approving a Loan Agreement, Providing for the Issuance of 

$4,200,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017 and Providing for the Levy of 
Taxes to Pay the Same. 

9. Resolution 1664 – Authorizing internal advance to the Tax Increment Financing Fund.  

10. Resolution 1665 – Considering the Issue of Whether Casey’s Marketing Company Should be 
Rebated the Incremental Tax Revenues Pursuant to the Development Agreement. 

11. Resolution 1666 – Approving the Submission of the City of West Branch FY 2017 Annual Urban 
Renewal Report. 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos
http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

12. Resolution 1667 – Obligating Funds From the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund for the Payment of 
Tax Increment Financed Obligations in Fiscal Year 2019 

13. Approve Claims Report 
EXPENDITURES     11/6/2017  
AMAZON      BOOKS & SUPPLIES     291.85  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.    BOOKS      1,027.87  
BARNHART'S CUSTOM SERVICES   STUMP REMOVAL & EXAVATION    6,812.50  
CEDAR COUNTY ENGINEER    MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    741.72  
CEDAR RAPIDS PHOTO COPY IN    COPIER MAINTENANCE    129.99  
CHIEF SUPPLY CORPORATION    SUPPLIES      62.55  
CJ COOPER & ASSOCIATES    DRUG TEST     35.00  
CROELL, INC.      FLOWABLE MORTAR     433.50  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIE   WATER SOFTENER SERVICE    35.20  
DAN'S OVERHEAD DOORS & MORE   REPAIR SERVICE     465.29  
EDGAR, GORDON      MILEAGE/PARKING     19.84  
FEHR GRAHAM      308 PV PARK IMP - DESIGN    3,292.00  
HARNEY INDUSTRIES INC    INSTALL CONCRETE @ K & G    2,100.00  
HAWKINS INC      CHEMICALS     817.85  
HD CLINE COMPANY     EQUIPMENT REPAIR     243.51  
HENSON, MICHAEL & BETH    SEWER REFUND     1,025.17  
HILL, SHERRY      VIDEO TAPING SERVICES    150.00  
HOLLYWOOD GRAPHICS    T SHIRTS      391.60  
INTERSTATE POWER SYSTEMS I    REPLACED BLOCK HEATER    670.18  
IOWA ONE CALL      UTILITY LOCATION SERVICE    59.40  
JESSICA SCHAFER      TRAVEL EXPENSE     12.00  
L. L. PELLING CO. INC    L. L. PELLING CO. INC     4,742.25  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    1,309.92  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC    ROADSTONE-SHOP     261.97  
MISCELLANEOUS VENDOR    FRANK HEATH:BOOK     27.00  
MOORE'S WELDING INC    SUPPLIES      78.22  
OLSON, KEVIN D      LEGAL SERVICES-NOVEMBER 2017   1,500.00  
ORIENTAL TRADING CO. INC.    PROGRAM SUPPLIES     203.07  
PORT 'O' JONNY INC.     SERVICE-WAPSI PARK     87.00  
QUALITY ENGRAVED SIGNS    SUPPLIES      65.50  
QUILL CORP      OFFICE SUPPLIES     39.01  
SENSUS USA      SOFTWARE SUPPORT     1,949.94  
SHIMMIN, NICK      PROGRAM SUPPLIES     61.00  
ST. PAUL STAMP WORKS INC.    ANIMAL TAGS     167.18  
STRATEGIC TRAINING INITIAT    HHTD-BALLOON ENTERTAINER    262.50  
SUMMIT COMPANIES    FIRE EXTINGUISHER TRAINING    300.00  
SUPPLYWORKS      BATHROOM SUPPLIES     299.78  
TRANS-IOWA EQUIPMENT INC    REPAIR PARTS     88.75  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     21.03  
USA BLUE BOOK      SUPPLIES      31.59  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    314 N FIRST ST IMP     600.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    316 SAN SEWER REHAB I & I PH 2    94.42  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    316 SAN SEWER REHAB I & I PH 2 RESIDENT REVIEW 71.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    310 COL ST BRIDGE FINAL DESIGN   4,643.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.     P & Z  - MEADOWS PT 2 RES REVIEW   2,290.74  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    315 MAIN ST SEWER WATER MAIN   6,195.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    LOT SITE PLAN REVIEW    747.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    310 COL ST BRIDGE ROW ACQUISITION   3,592.60  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    318 COL ST & 2ND ST IMPROVEMENTS   4,666.00  
VERIZON WIRELESS      VERIZON WIRELESS     813.90  
WATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED    PHOSPHATE     2,515.00  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL   BUSING-SWIMMING, FIELD TRIPS   2,874.47  
    
TOTAL            59,415.86  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
BWC EXCAVATING LC    315 MAIN ST WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 40,323.44  
RIVER PRODUCTS COMPANY    DEPOSIT WETLANDS CREDIT   2,600.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     21.46  
BP AMOCO      VEHICLE FUEL     358.96  



 

 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MARKETING   ANNUAL FEE     735.00  
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    OFFICE CLEANING     1,185.18  
MIKE HORIHAN      UNIFORM REPAIR     10.95  
OLSON, KEVIN D      LEGAL SERVICES     1,500.00  
PORT 'O' JONNY INC     HHTD SERVICE     868.00  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD    TRAVEL, TRAINING & SUPPLIES    2,290.59  
BROWN'S WEST BRANCH    VEHICLE MAINTENANCE    106.86  
DEWEY'S JACK & JILL     MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    5.79  
DODGE ST TIRE & AUTO    SNOW TIRES    544.48  
HD CLINE      REPAIRS PARTS     71.34  
JEREMY LYNN LLC      INSTALLATION SALT SHED    2,430.00  
METROPOLITAN COMPOUNDS INC   CHEMICALS     1,020.70  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES    LAB ANALYSIS     840.00  
TRUGREEN PROCESSING CENTER   LAWN SERVICE LIONS FIELD    376.00  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC   DVDS, PROGRAM SUPPLIES    216.50  
WEST BRANCH REPAIRS    VEHICLE REPAIR     348.53  
FRONTLINE PLUS FIRE & RESCUE INC   SIREN REPAIR     7,984.91  
IMWCA      WORK COMP AUDIT ADJUSTMENT   983.00  
MEDIACOM      CABLE SERVICE     40.90  
PSC DISTRIBUTION      SUPPLIES      275.74  
RIVER PRODUCTS COMPANY    WETLANDS CREDIT -BALANCE DUE   23,400.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     21.03  
    
TOTAL             88,559.36  
    
PAYROLL 10/20/2017           53,710.64  
PAYROLL 10/20/2017-SICK TIME PAYOUT          974.74  
PAYROLL 11/03/2017           42,051.92  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES                           244,712.52  
    
 
 
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND   66,188.56 
022   CIVIC CENTER     505.34 
031   LIBRARY     13,582.09 
036   TORT LIABILITY    5,989.00 
110   ROAD USE TAX    19,907.52 
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   16646.11 
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY  29,292.00 
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE   8,235.60 
314   N FIRST ST IMPROVEMENTS  600.00 
315   MAIN ST WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 46,518.44 
316   I & I LINE/GROUT PH 2   165.42 
318   COLLEGE ST & 2ND ST IMPROVEMENTS 4,666.00 
600   WATER FUND     13,715.20 
610   SEWER FUND     18,701.24 
    
GRAND TOTAL      244,712.52  
  

The mayor asked for a motion to approve items 1 through 7 and item 13 on the Consent Agenda.  Motion 

by Stevenson, second by Shields to approve agenda/consent agenda items 1 through 7 and item 13.  AYES:  

Stevenson, Shields, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Miller, Pierce.  Motion carried.   
 

Item 8. Resolution 1663 – Authorizing and Approving a Loan Agreement, Providing for the Issuance of 

$4,200,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017 and Providing for the Levy of Taxes 

to Pay the Same. 

Motion by Stevenson, second by Ellyson to approve agenda/consent agenda item 8.  AYES:  Stevenson, 

Ellyson, Shields.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Miller, Pierce.  Motion carried.   

 

Item 9.  Resolution 1664 – Authorizing internal advance to the Tax Increment Financing Fund.  



 

 

Motion by Stevenson, second by Ellyson to approve agenda/consent agenda item 9.  AYES:  Stevenson, 

Ellyson, Shields, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Miller.  Motion carried.   

 

Item 10. Resolution 1665 – Considering the Issue of Whether Casey’s Marketing Company Should be 

Rebated the Incremental Tax Revenues Pursuant to the Development Agreement. 
Motion by Shields, second by Pierce to approve agenda/consent agenda item 10.  AYES:  Shields, Pierce, 

Stevenson, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Miller.  Motion carried.  

 

Item 11. Resolution 1666 – Approving the Submission of the City of West Branch FY 2017 Annual 

Urban Renewal Report. 
Motion by Stevenson, second by Ellyson to approve agenda/consent agenda item 11.  AYES:  

Stevenson, Ellyson, Pierce, Shields.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Miller.  Motion carried.   

 

Item 12. Resolution 1667 – Obligating Funds From the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund for the 

Payment of Tax Increment Financed Obligations in Fiscal Year 2019. 

Motion by Shields, second by Stevenson to approve agenda/consent agenda item 12.  AYES:  Shields, 

Stevenson, Pierce, Ellyson,.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Miller.  Motion carried.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Ordinance 747 – (Second Reading) Amending Chapter 165, entitled Zoning Regulations. /Move to action. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Stevenson to approve second reading of Ordinance 747.  AYES:  Ellyson. 

Stevenson, Pierce, Shields.  NAYS: None.  ABSENT:  Miller.  Motion carried.   

 

 Ordinance 748 – (First Reading) Amending the Animal Protection and Control (chapter 55) of the City 

of West Branch to Allow the Keeping of Urban Chickens. /Move to action. 

Motion by Stevenson, second by Ellyson to approve first reading of Ordinance 748.  Councilperson Shields 

expressed concern that allowing people to have chickens in the city would invite other critters such as 

foxes and coyotes into the community and would present risks to pets.  Dr. Beyer, Chairman of the Animal 

Control Commission, reported that they had contacted several cities and found that the cities had not 

experienced any problems related to keeping chickens in town.  AYES:  Stevenson, Ellyson, Shields.  

NAYS: Pierce.  ABSENT:  Miller.  Motion carried.   

 

CITY STAFF REPORTS  
Jones announced that there are several openings on city boards and commissions due to resignations and 

expiration of terms.  The city is seeking volunteers to make up a list of people who will be available for 

appointment to fill these vacancies.    

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
Councilperson Shields asked if the Planning and Zoning Commission could review the requirement for 33 

feet wide streets in new development areas of the city. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn regular meeting by Shields, second by Pierce.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City 

Council meeting adjourned at 6:26 p.m. 

   

                           _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Gordon R. Edgar, Deputy City Clerk  



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1668 – A Resolution to Welcome the Des Moines 

Register’s Annual Great Bicycle Ride Across Iowa (RAGBRAI) to 

Cedar County in 2018. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  November 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

To support RAGBRAI and cyclists in general. This event is a unique event that draws 

thousands of visitors to Iowa annually and promotes Iowa tourism.  This is also a high 

profile event that will give the City of West Branch exposure and tourism.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution - Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 
Consent Item 2 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1668 

 

A RESOLUTION TO WELCOME THE DES MOINES REGISTER’S ANNUAL 

GREAT BIKE RIDE ACROSS IOWA (RAGBRAI) TO CEDAR COUNTY IN 

2018.  

 

WHEREAS, Cedar County is fortunately well positioned to host RAGBRAI 

XLVI providing our citizens the opportunity to take part in this world class, world 

renowned event; and the chance to showcase our communities and impress our Iowa 

values upon thousands of visitors from all walks of life, and 

 

WHEREAS, RAGBRAI provides a significant economic boost to both for-profit 

businesses and non-profit organizations in its overnight and pass-through communities, 

and  

WHEREAS, RAGBRAI fosters a great sense of community pride as residents 

rally in preparation for the event and work together to put a collective best foot forward 

as the riders roll into town, and 

 

WHEREAS, biking in general is an excellent form of exercise enjoyed by 

millions of Americans, as well as a pollution-free form of transportation that should be 

encouraged; and RAGBRAI promotes bicycle culture and can introduce our residents to 

the many health, economic and environmental benefits of cycling. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch is anticipated to be on the route of the next 

RAGBRAI, and will gain exposure for local trails, businesses, and community. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, pledges our full support in bringing RAGBRAI back 

to Cedar County, and our wonderful Iowa communities in 2018.  In addition, authorizes 

the use of municipal support service resources as a partner with this event as it travels 

through our municipal boarders. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Liquor License for “Herb N’ Lou’s”, located 

at 105 North Downey St, West Branch, Iowa. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) with Sunday Sales privileges for Herb 

n’ Lou’s the Down Under, located at 105 North Downey Street, West Branch, Iowa.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Council Approval – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1670 – A Resolution Approving Snow Removal on 

Parkside Drive, Second Street and Cedar Street for the United States 

Department of the Interior, National Park Service, Herbert Hoover 

National Historic Site. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director 

DATE:  November 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The National Park Service (NPS) owns several lengths of street in town that the City 

routinely plow during snow events. These include portions of Park Side Drive, Cedar 

Street, South 1st Street and South 2nd Street. The City and the NPS partner on this to 

cooperatively provide safe clean driving surfaces in the winter months completed as 

efficiently as possible. Since City crews are already driving over these streets to access 

other areas of town it makes sense that we would plow these as well. A similar snow plow 

agreement has been in place for at least as long as I have worked for the City and seems to 

have worked out well for both parties in the past. 

.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution - Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

                            Consent Item 4 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1670 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES ON PARKSIDE 

DRIVE, SECOND STREET AND CEDAR STREET FOR THE UNITED STATES 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, NATIONAL PARK SERVICE, HERBERT 

HOOVER NATIONAL HISTORIC SITE.  

 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of West Branch and the United 

States Department of the Interior, National Park Service, Herbert Hoover National 

Historic Site (NPS)to coordinate snow removal; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the best interest of the residents of the 

City of West Branch to provide for snow removal services on Parkside Drive, Second 

Street and Cedar Street during winter weather; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch would provide snow removal services to 

NPS from December 4, 2017 until November 11, 2020; and  

 

WHEREAS, the National Park Service will pay the City of West Branch 

$6,000.00 a year for the next three years.  An annual payment is expected by June 1, each 

preceding year, starting in 2018 for the provision of snow removal services. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa, that the provision of the aforementioned snow removal services are 

hereby approved.  Furthermore, the Mayor is directed to execute the services on behalf of 

the City,   

 

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

Former Contract – Place Holder 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the City of West Branch Parks and Recreation 

Phase 1 Improvements – Certificate of Completion.   

CITY GOAL: Promote Quality of Life Including Public Safety, Community Pride 

Events, Strong Citizen Involvement, Parks and Recreation 

Opportunities and Investment. 

PREPARED BY: Brian Boelk, HBK Engineering 

DATE:  November 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

As defined in the West Branch Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan, Phase 1 

Improvements were designed for Lion’s Field and Wapsi Park.  Such improvements 

included the addition of a new restroom and ADA sidewalk connection at Lion’s Field, as 

well as a new playground, sidewalk, and parking lot at Wapsi Park.   

 

This project has been completed in full by the Contractor, All American, Inc. earlier this 

summer.  All punch list items have been completed and site fully restored and stabilized 

per plans and specifications.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council on this topic 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
 

 

 

 

Consent Item 5 



 

 

 

HBK Engineering, LLC 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 2 Pay 

Estimate No. 3. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. 

DATE:  November 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This pay request is to release the retainage under the contract with Visu-Sewer for Phase 2 

of the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation project.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 6 



 

 

  



 

 

  



 

 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1669 – A Resolution to Increase the Depository Limit at 

Community State Bank, A Depository of the City of West Branch.   

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edger, Financial Officer 

DATE:  November 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The current depository limit for the City at Community State Bank is $3,000,000.  The 

receipt of the $4,200,000 proceeds from our bond issuance expected to close December 5th.  

At which time, if not addressed the proceeds will move the City above that limit.    

Increasing the limit to $7,000,000 should allow the City to remain within the limits 

established by the Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 7 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1669 
 
A RESOLUTION TO INCREASE THE DEPOSITORY LIMIT AT COMMUNITY 

STATE BANK, A DEPOSITORY OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH  

 

 WHEREAS, the current depository limit for the City of West Branch is $3,000,000 

with the Bank known as Community State Bank; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the receipt of the $4,200,000 proceeds from our December 5 bond 

issuance will move the City above that limit;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; hereby increase the depository limit at Community State 

Bank, a depository of the City of West Branch funds, to an amount not to exceed in the 

aggregate the amounts named for said bank. 

 

Community State Bank, West Branch, Iowa 

7,000,000.00 
 

 
Passed and approved this 20th day of November, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report and Accept Recently 

Approved Bond Closing Letter. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edger, Finance Officer 

DATE:  November 29, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 

These are routine expenditure that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Accept Animal Control Recommendation 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 8 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

Bond Closing Letter (Approved Nov 20) 



 

 

   



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Ordinance 748 – (Second Reading) Amending the Zoning Code of 

the City of West Branch to Allow the Keeping of Urban Chickens.  

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  November 29, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

This is an item that arrived to the agenda from a grass root beginning.  What started a year 

ago as a 4th grade class project; is now proposed to the City Council for a policy direction.  

Presented to the City Council approximately a year ago, the policy advocates were directed 

to work with the Animal Control Commission to develop a policy which then would be 

presented to the City Council.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Feedback / Seek Direction for Second Reading 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:       

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 748 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH TO ALLOW THE KEEPING OF URBAN CHICKENS. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Animal Control Commission of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

has heretofore recommended it necessary to make certain amendments to the City Code 

of allow chickens within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of the following 

ordinance. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment. Section 55.09 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add 

the following phrase at the end of said section, except as allowed under Section 55.09A. 

 

2. Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add Section 

55.09A, which reads as follows: 

 

“55.09A.  URBAN CHICKENS.  The keeping of domestic chickens shall be 

permitted in an R-1 Single Family District or an R-2 Two Family District, so long 

as said Urban Chickens are kept in strict compliance with this Section 55.09A. 

 

1. Permit Required.  No person shall raise, harbor or keep chickens within 

the City without a valid permit in accordance with this section. 

 

2. Application for Permit.  In order to obtain a permit, the applicant shall 

complete the following: 

 

 a. Submit an application form to the City; 

 b. Pay all permit fees as set by Resolution of the City Council. 

c. Submit proof of completion by the applicant of an approved class 

that discussed raising chickens in an urban setting. 

d. The applicant shall provide proof to the City that the applicant has 

submitted an application for the raising of Urban Chickens to all 

adjacent landowners and occupants. 

e. Submit a sketch drawing to the City showing the location and 

placement of the chicken coops, fowl house and/or pens, and 

provide the City with a narrative description of how the applicant 

will comply with the rules and regulations of this Section. 

 

f. List the number of chickens that are proposed to be kept on the 

premises. 

 



 

 

3. Review and Issuance of Permit.  After receipt of the completed permit 

application and the passage of thirty (30) days following the notification to the 

adjacent property owners described in subparagraph (2)(d) above, the City shall 

review the application, and if the City determines that the application is complete 

and complies with the rule of this Section, shall issue the Permit.  No chickens 

shall be brought to the premises until such time as the City has reviewed the 

premises to ensure compliance with subparagraph (2)(e) above.  The permit is 

hereby revoked once a permittee no longer resides at the permitted residence. 

 

4. Issuance of Bands.  The City shall issue each permitted chicken a band 

that the permittee shall attach to each chicken’s leg to ensure compliance with 

this Section. 

 

5. Right of Entry.  By issuing the permit, the applicant expressly agrees that 

a representative of the City may enter upon the premises to inspect the premises 

and investigate any complaints against the applicant. 

 

6. Validity of Permit.  Any permit issued under this Section shall be valid 

through December 31st of the year the permit is issued.  Prior to the end of each 

calendar year, the applicant shall submit an application for renewal of its permit 

for another calendar year. 

 

7. Denial or Revocation of Permit/Appeal.  The City may, upon written 

notice to the applicant or permittee, deny the application for a permit or revoke 

an already issued permit.  Said denial or revocation shall be made in writing and 

specify the grounds for denial or revocation.  The applicant or permittee can 

appeal the denial or revocation of a permit to the Animal Control Commission by 

filing notice of appeal with the City Clerk within five (5) days from the date of 

denial or revocation.  Upon hearing the appeal, the decision of the Animal 

Control Commission shall be final.  Any further appeal must be taken to the Iowa 

District Court. 

 

8. Effect of Revocation.  The permittee shall remove all chickens and 

equipment associated with raising the chickens from the premises within ten (10) 

days after the permit has been revoked.  An appeal as outlined in paragraph (6) 

stays the revocation until a final decision has been made.  A person who has their 

permit revoked may not apply for another permit for at least one year from the 

date of revocation of the permit. 

  

9. Minimum rules and regulations.  No person shall be permitted to keep, 

harbor or raise Urban Chickens unless the following minimum rules and 

regulations are met. 

 

a. No person shall keep, harbor or raise more than five chickens on any 

contiguous parcels of land. 

b. No roosters are permitted under this Section. 



 

 

c. All chickens must be kept within an enclosed or fenced area at all times. 

d. Chickens shall be secured within a henhouse or chicken tractor during 

non-daylight hours. 

e. The coop, fowl house or the fenced pen area shall comply with the 

following guidelines: 

 

 (i) Shall be located in a rear yard of the premises; 

(ii) Shall be of a design to be reasonably expected to prevent entry by 

dogs, cats or other animals; 

 (iii) Except for the fenced pen area, shall be totally enclosed; 

(iv) Shall be located at least twelve (12) feet from any property line; 

(v) Shall not exceed eight (8) feet in height; 

(vi) The materials used to construct the coop or fowl house shall be 

uniform for each element of the structure such that the walls are 

made of the same material, the roof has the same shingles and any 

windows/openings are constructed using the same materials; 

(vii) Fencing materials must meet the requirements of the Zoning Code; 

(viii) The coop, fowl house or the fenced pen area shall contain at least 

four (4) square feet of area for each chicken, but not contain more 

than twelve (12) square feet of area for each chicken. 

(ix) All coops, fowl houses or the fenced pen areas shall be kept in a 

clean, dry, odor-free, and sanitary condition at all times.  All 

droppings shall either be used as fertilizer or placed in a fly-proof 

container for proper disposal. 

   

  f. All chicken feed shall be stored in rodent-proof containers. 

 

 10. Violation shall be deemed a nuisance.  Any person who keeps, harbors or 

raises chickens within the City who is doing so in strict compliance with this 

Section shall be deemed keeping a nuisance on the premises.  This section is not 

intended to limit the City’s remedies under this Section to a nuisance, but the City 

may take any and all lawful actions to enforce the terms of this Section. 

 

 11. No Liability.  The City shall not be liable for injury or death to any 

chickens caused by dogs, cats or other animals, domestic or wild, whether such 

animals are licensed by the City of not.  In addition, for purposes of this chapter, 

the death of any chicken located in the City shall not, by itself, be sufficient 

grounds to determine that said animal is vicious.   

 

 12. Disposal.  All feces and any dead chickens shall be disposed by the 

permittee in accordance with applicable law. 

 

 13. Prohibited Acts.  It shall be unlawful for any person to commit the 

following acts within the City: 

 

a. Keep, harbor or raise chickens in in violation of this Section; 



 

 

b. Keep or harbor chickens inside any dwelling unit. 

c. Slaughter chickens; or 

d. Keep, harbor or raise chickens on a vacant or uninhabited tract of 

land.” 

 

14. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided 

for and in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

15. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be 

adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the 

validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not 

adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

16. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its 

passage, approval and publication as required by law. 

 

 

First reading:  November 20, 2017 

Second reading: December 4, 2017 

Third Reading: December 18, 2017 

 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 20, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Ordinance 747 – (Third Reading) Amending Chapter 165, entitled 

“Zoning Regulations”. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 30, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

There were three issues that have come to the attention of the City with recent development 

demands.  The following  

 Water line (update code to reflect zero lot line structures) 

 Front Yard Setback Requirements (25feet) allow for existing non-conforming 

structure (older neighborhoods) 

 Address Downtown (non-conforming) issues 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission approved and recommends adding the proposed language 

in Ordinance 747 to Chapter 165.11(2), 165.27(3), 165.28(3), 165.29(3), and 165.35(2).  

Amending the chapter to include requirements for zero lot line dwellings and amending 

rear yard requirements in the Central Business District (CB-1). 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Provide Feedback / Approve Third Reading 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

ORDINANCE 747 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, has heretofore recommended it necessary to make certain amendments to the City’s 

Zoning Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing on said zoning revisions has now been held as 

required by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment. Section 165.11(2) of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to 

add subsection (E) which reads as follows: 

 

”E. In all residential districts there shall be a minimum front yard required for 

that particular zoning district in this Chapter; provided, however, that where lots 

compromising thirty (30) percent or more of the frontage within two hundred 

(200) feet of either side lot line are developed with buildings at a greater or lesser 

setback than stated in said particular zoning district, the front yard requirement 

for an undeveloped lot shall be the average of these building setbacks.  In 

computing the average setback, buildings located on reverse corner lots or 

entirely on the rear half of lots shall not be counted.  However, in no case shall 

the required front yard setback exceed fifty (50) feet.   

 

2. Amendment.  Section 165.27(3)(A) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot lines shall have a lot area of three thousand eight hundred and fifty 

(3850) square feet per dwelling unit.  Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a building line 

frontage of thirty-five (35) feet. 

  

3. Amendment.  Section 165.27(3)(C) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have two side yard setbacks, one which is zero (0) 

feet and the other shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet.” 

 

4. Amendment.  Section 165.28(3)(A) is hereby amended by adding subparagraph 

(3) which reads as follows: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a frontage of not less than thirty-five (35) feet 

and a lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) square feet.” 

 



 

 

5. Amendment.  Sections 165.29(3)(B) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence at the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a lot area of four thousand two hundred 

(4200) square feet with a minimum width at the established building line of thirty-

five (35) feet.” 

 

6. Amendment.  Section 165.29(3)(G) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have two side yard setbacks, one which is zero (0) 

feet and the other shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet.” 

 

7. Amendment.  Section 165.35(2)(C) is hereby amended by deleting it in its entirety 

and replacing it with the following: 

 
“C. Rear Yard.    No rear yard shall be required in the Central Business CB-1 

District.  When abutting a residential district, a twenty (20) rear yard is 

required.” 

 

7. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and 

in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

8. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 

ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 

9. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  November 6, 2017  

Second reading: November 20, 2017 

Third Reading: December 4, 2017 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Plans and Specs; setting dates for hearing and 

letting for Cubby Park.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  November 30, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  
Nate Kass of Fehr Graham has suggested a timeline for the bid letting process for Cubby Park.   
 
December 4 (regular meeting) – approve plans and specs; set dates for hearing and letting 
December 5 – issue plans and specs to contractors (mail notices) 
Publish notice between December 23rd and 28th.  This week the West Branch Times will not run a 
paper due to the Holidays so it may be best to publish in the Times December 14th and 
December 21st. This would meet the 4-20 day notice for the notice requirements. 
January 2 (regular meeting) - public hearing on plans and specs 
January 11 – letting 
January 15 (regular meeting) – review bids and award 
 
It is the intent of Fehr Graham let the contractor start as soon as he wants after the contracts are 
signed/approved. They plan to have the ball field seeding down and grow-in plan begun by June 
15. The overall project is to be fully completed by November 2. 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1672 – Approving the Encroachment Agreement with 

Mid-America Pipeline Co., LLC  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Director of Parks and Recreation  

DATE:  November 30, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

Resolution accepting terms of an Encroachment Agreement related to a City Council 

Approved Development Agreement (Cubby Park Project). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1672 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ENCROACHMENT 

AGREEMENT WIT MID-AMERICA PIPELINE CO., LLC 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch owns a certain tract of land located in Cedar 

County, Iowa and more particularly described as follows: 

Being Outlot B, Cedar Addition, Part Two, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa and 

the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 6, Township 79 North, Range 4 West of the 5th P.M., 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa and more particularly described in that certain Warranty 

Deed from PV Properties, LLC to City of West Branch, effective July 31, 2013 and 

recorded August 2, 2013 in Book 1183, Page 212 in the Cedar County Recorder’s Office, 

Cedar County, Iowa  (the “Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, Mid-America Pipeline Company LLC, holds a certain right of way and 

easement upon, over, under and through the Property, more particularly described in that 

certain Grant of Easement from Carl Sagert and Anna Bernice Sagert to Mid-America 

Pipeline Company recorded under document number 4206 in the Cedar County Recorder’s 

Office, Cedar County, Iowa (the “Easement”); and 

  

 WHEREAS, Mid-America Pipeline Company LLC, owns and operates a pipeline that 

is located within the Easement and commonly known as line number 600-601-602, East 

Leg Mainline pipeline (the “Pipeline”; the Pipeline together with any related valves, 

meters, equipment, and other appurtenances, collectively the “Facilities”) that runs through 

the Property pursuant to the Easement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch desires to construct one (1) twenty-four foot 

(24’) wide, eight inch (8”) thick reinforced PCC surface rigid pavement parking lot main 

drive crossover; one (1) twenty-four inch (24”) RCP storm sewer line; one (1) eight inch 

(8”) SDR 26 PVC sanitary sewer line; and one (1) six inch DIP water main line as shown 

on the plans dated March 17, 2017 and attached hereto as Exhibit A under the Pipeline, 

which will encroach on the Easement (the “Encroachment”);and 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch also desires to obtain Mid-America Pipeline 

Company’s consent to encroach on the Easement and Facilities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Mid-America Pipeline Company LLC, is subject to the terms and 

conditions hereinafter stated, is willing to permit the Encroachment. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa that the Council, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants 

herein contained and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, Mid-America Pipeline LLC hereby agrees to accommodate the 

Encroachment, subject to the following terms and conditions, and Mid-America Pipeline 

and the City of West Branch hereby agree as follows: 



 

 

1. Recitals:  The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into and made part 

of this Agreement. 

2. Assumption of Risk:  The City of West Branch assumes all risks for 

damages, injuries, or loss to either property or persons, which may be incurred by the City 

of West Branch or its agents, invitees, guests, or licensees present on, or in the vicinity of, 

the Easement and in any way associated with the Encroachment.  Any maintenance or 

improvements to or repairs of the Encroachment that may become necessary shall be the 

sole responsibility, and performed at the sole cost and expense, of the city.  Furthermore 

the City of West Branch shall keep all portions of the Encroachment in good repair. 

3. Construction Parameters:  Construction activity of any kind, including, but 

not limited to, equipment movement, materials storage, boring, and digging that take place 

within the Easement will require 48 hours (two working days) prior notice to Iowa One-

Call at 811.  A Mid-America Pipeline Company LLC, representative must be present 

during any of the aforementioned construction activities and Landowner acknowledges that 

company’s representative shall have full authority to stop any of the City of West Branch’s 

excavation or construction related activities within the Easement if Mid-America Pipeline 

Company’s representative, in his/her sole discretion, believes the city’s activities could 

result in damage to the Facilities or pose a threat to the environment or public safety.  The 

presence of Mid-America Pipeline Company’s representative will not relieve the City of 

West Branch of any liability under this Resolution and attached Agreement. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 

STATE OF IOWA  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF  CEDAR § 

This Encroachment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 

between MID-AMERICA PIPELINE CO., LLC (hereinafter referred to as “Company”) 

whose mailing address is c/o Land Department, P.O. Box 4324, Houston, Texas 77210-

4324 and physical address is c/o Land Department, 9420 W. Sam Houston Parkway N., 

Houston, Texas 77064-6317, and CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA (hereinafter referred 

to as “Landowner”), whose address is 110 N. Poplar, West Branch, Iowa 52358, upon the 

following terms and conditions: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Landowner owns a certain tract of land located in Cedar County, Iowa 

and more particularly described as follows: 

Being Outlot B, Cedar Addition, Part Two, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa and 

the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 6, Township 79 North, Range 4 West of the 5th P.M., 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa and more particularly described in that certain Warranty 

Deed from PV Properties, LLC to City of West Branch, effective July 31, 2013 and 

recorded August 2, 2013 in Book 1183, Page 212 in the Cedar County Recorder’s Office, 

Cedar County, Iowa  (the “Property”); 

WHEREAS, Company holds a certain right of way and easement upon, over, under 

and through the Property, more particularly described in that certain Grant of Easement 

from Carl Sagert and Anna Bernice Sagert to Mid-America Pipeline Company recorded 

under document number 4206 in the Cedar County Recorder’s Office, Cedar County, Iowa 

(the “Easement”); 

WHEREAS, Company owns and operates a pipeline that is located within the 

Easement and commonly known as line number 600-601-602, East Leg Mainline pipeline 

(the “Pipeline”; the Pipeline together with any related valves, meters, equipment, and other 

appurtenances, collectively the “Facilities”) that runs through the Property pursuant to the 

Easement; 

WHEREAS, Landowner desires to construct one (1) twenty-four foot (24’) wide, 

eight inch (8”) thick reinforced PCC surface rigid pavement parking lot main drive 

crossover; one (1) twenty-four inch (24”) RCP storm sewer line; one (1) eight inch (8”) 

SDR 26 PVC sanitary sewer line; and one (1) six inch DIP water main line as shown on 

the plans dated March 17, 2017 and attached hereto as Exhibit A under the Pipeline, which 

will encroach on the Easement (the “Encroachment”); 

WHEREAS, Landowner desires to obtain Company’s consent to encroach on the 

Easement and Facilities; and 



 

 

WHEREAS, Company, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter stated, is 

willing to permit the Encroachment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants 

herein contained and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, Company hereby agrees to accommodate the Encroachment, 

subject to the following terms and conditions, and Company and Landowner hereby agree 

as follows: 

4. Recitals:  The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into and made part 

of this Agreement. 

5. Assumption of Risk:  Landowner assumes all risks for damages, injuries, or 

loss to either property or persons, which may be incurred by Landowner or its agents, 

invitees, guests, or licensees present on, or in the vicinity of, the Easement and in any way 

associated with the Encroachment.  Any maintenance or improvements to or repairs of the 

Encroachment that may become necessary shall be the sole responsibility, and performed 

at the sole cost and expense, of Landowner.  Landowner shall keep all portions of the 

Encroachment in good repair. 

6. Construction Parameters:  Construction activity of any kind, including, but 

not limited to, equipment movement, materials storage, boring, and digging that take place 

within the Easement will require 48 hours (two working days) prior notice to Iowa One-

Call at 811.  A Company representative must be present during any of the aforementioned 

construction activities and Landowner acknowledges that Company’s representative shall 

have full authority to stop any of Landowner’s excavation or construction related activities 

within the Easement if Company’s representative, in his/her sole discretion, believes 

Landowner’s activities could result in damage to the Facilities or pose a threat to the 

environment or public safety.  The presence of Company’s representative will not relieve 

Landowner of any liability under this Agreement. 

7. The following language must be conspicuously displayed on all 

drawings depicting the Pipeline(s): 

WARNING! 

HIGH PRESSURE PIPELINE(S) 

Excavation and/or Construction Prohibited without Prior Written Permission From 

Mid-America Pipeline Co., LLC 

8. Construction Parameters (continued):  No equipment will be allowed to 

work over the Pipeline, unless approved by Company’s representative.  Company will 

require a minimum of 72 hours written notice prior to crossing the Pipeline with heavy 

equipment.  Excavators must work/dig parallel to the Pipeline, and the buckets must have 

barred teeth.  Any excavation within eighteen (18) inches plus half the diameter of the 

Pipeline will be done by hand; however, no mechanical excavation should ever be 

performed less than two (2) feet from the Pipeline.  No vibratory compaction equipment is 

allowed within the Easement.  Landowner’s crossing(s) will be as close to ninety (90) 



 

 

degrees as possible to the Pipeline, but not less than forty-five (45) degrees.  Company will 

require physical verification of Pipeline depth of cover and alignment, at Landowner’s 

expense, prior to work being performed near the Pipeline.  The method of physical 

verification, whether hydro-excavation or other means, shall be coordinated and approved 

by Company’s field representative.  If the Pipeline is not at the anticipated alignment or 

depth, Landowner shall adjust the Encroachment accordingly at no expense to Company.  

A minimum of four feet and six inches (4’.6”) of cover must be maintained over the 

Pipeline and shall include temporary two (2) foot thick Macadam “Bridging”.  

9. Roadway:  Landowner will maintain a minimum of four (4) feet of cover 

between the top of the Pipeline and the top of the road surface(s). Landowner shall be 

responsible for all future damage to Proposed Mainline Drive including its replacement or 

restoration in the event that Company, or its designee, must access the Pipeline and/or 

associated right-of-way to perform routine or emergency maintenance.    

10. Underground Pipelines and Utilities:  All underground pipelines and 

utilities will be installed under the Pipeline.  Landowner will install the aforementioned 

storm sewer line in such a way that a minimum vertical separation of seven feet (7’) 

between the bottom of the Pipeline and the top of Landowner’s storm sewer line is 

maintained.  Landowner will install the aforementioned sanitary sewer line in such a way 

that a minimum vertical separation of six feet and six inches (6’-6”) between the bottom of 

the Pipeline and the top of Landowner’s sewer line is maintained.  Landowner will install 

the aforementioned water main in such a way that a minimum vertical separation of three 

feet (3’) between the bottom of the Pipeline and the top of Landowner’s water main is 

maintained.  Landowner shall include warning tape in accordance with the American 

Public Works Association (APWA) Uniform Color Code, above the storm sewer, sanitary 

sewer and water main lines, twelve inches (12”) below ground and shall extend at least 

twenty feet (20’) each direction measured from the crossing point.  In coordination with 

and at the discretion of the Company’s field representative, Landowner shall provide 

adequate pipeline support every fifteen feet (15’) of unsupported pipeline span, to 

include any exposed apparent circumferential joints, when exposing the Pipeline via 

open trench as it relates to the open trench construction for the aforementioned storm 

sewer line and aforementioned water main.  COMPANY reserves the right to inspect 

and possibly recoat the exposed pipeline.  The open trench shall be constructed in a 

manner that allows for safe manned entry into the trench per OSHA standards.  In 

regards to the aforementioned sanitary sewer line, in coordination with and at the discretion 

of the Company representative, Landowner shall provide adequate inspection potholes 

minimum thirty-six inches (36”) below the Pipeline when installing the aforementioned 

eight inch (8”) SDR 26 PVC sanitary sewer line via trenchless construction.  All bore pits 

shall be outside the Pipeline right-of-way.  In coordination and at the discretion of the 

Company representative, Landowner shall provide adequate inspection potholes minimum 

thirty-six inches (36”) below the Pipeline when installing the aforementioned eight inch 

(8”) SDR 26 PVC sanitary sewer line via trenchless construction.  All bore pits shall be 

outside the Pipeline right-of-way.    

11. Heavy Equipment:  Landowner will cross the Pipeline and/or Easement 

with heavy equipment at the APPROVED crossing areas ONLY.  Landowner will 



 

 

place Macadam Bridging (copy of drawing attached as Exhibit C) over the Pipeline and/or 

Easement as determined by Company’s field representative.  Landowner shall maintain 

minimum depth of four feet and six inches (4’-6”) of cover over the Pipeline Easement. 

12. Excavated Material:  Excavated material will not be placed over the 

Pipeline nor within the Pipeline Easement. Landowner agrees to clean up and repair all 

damages to the Easement resulting from the work on or across the Easement.  Any and all 

damage repairs and cleanup of the Easement will be subject to Company’s acceptance. 

13. Landscaping:  Large landscaping is not permitted on the Easement, 

including, but not limited to, trees, shrubs, and large landscaping with a mature untrimmed 

height greater than eighteen (18) inches.  Company reserves the right to trim canopy of any 

trees or other vegetation adjacent to the Easement to prevent overhang onto the Easement. 

14. No Interference:  Landowner shall at all times conduct all of its activities 

within the Easement in such a manner as not to interfere with or impede in any manner 

whatsoever the operation of the Facilities and any related activities of Company.  If at any 

time Company, in its sole discretion, determines that the safety, operation, or maintenance 

of the Facilities is adversely affected by the Encroachment, Company may take any and all 

necessary action to protect the Easement and Facilities from such adverse condition.  In 

accordance with Section 13, Landowner shall promptly reimburse Company for its 

reasonable costs incurred in protecting or modifying the Facilities from, or to eliminate, 

such adverse condition. 

15. INDEMNIFICATION 

(A)  GENERAL INDEMNITY:  EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO CLAIMS RELATING TO BODILY INJURY OR DEATH 

OF AN EMPLOYEE (AS DEFINED IN THE NEXT PARAGRAPH), LANDOWNER AGREES TO AND SHALL DEFEND, 
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS (COLLECTIVELY “INDEMNIFY”) COMPANY, ITS AFFILIATES, PARTNERS, 
MEMBERS, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES (COLLECTIVELY THE “INDEMNIFIED PARTIES” OR 

INDIVIDUALLY AN “INDEMNIFIED PARTY”) FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, 
DEMANDS, INJURIES, JUDGMENTS, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 

LIMITED TO, ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS AND ATTORNEY’S FEES (COLLECTIVELY “CLAIMS”), FOR 

BODILY OR PERSONAL INJURIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DEATH, TO ANY PERSON OR DAMAGES TO OR 

DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE LOSS OF USE THEREOF, ACTUALLY OR 

ALLEGEDLY CAUSED BY, CONTRIBUTED TO OR ARISING OUT OF, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, THE ENCROACHMENT, THE 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE ENCROACHMENT, OR THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, CLAIMS 

CAUSED BY, CONTRIBUTED TO OR ARISING OUT OF, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, THE NEGLIGENCE, GROSS NEGLIGENCE, 
BREACH OF WARRANTY, BREACH OF CONTRACT, VIOLATION OF ANY STATUTE, RULE OR REGULATION OR OTHER 

ACT OR OMISSION BY LANDOWNER OR ITS RESPECTIVE AGENTS, CONTRACTORS OR EMPLOYEES, OR ANY OTHER 

PARTY FOR WHOSE ACTS LANDOWNER IS LIABLE (“LANDOWNER PARTY”), AND INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS AND ATTORNEY’S FEES INCURRED BY THE INDEMNIFIED PARTIES IN 

DEFENSE OF SUCH CLAIMS.  LANDOWNER’S OBLIGATION TO INDEMNIFY SHALL APPLY EVEN IF SUCH CLAIMS ARE 

ACTUALLY OR ALLEGEDLY CAUSED IN PART BY THE STRICT LIABILITY OR THE ACTS, OMISSIONS, OR NEGLIGENCE OF 

AN INDEMNIFIED PARTY, EVEN IF SUCH NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER ACTS OR OMISSIONS ARE ACTIVE OR PASSIVE, 
DIRECT OR INDIRECT OR CONCURRENT.  THIS INDEMNITY AGREEMENT IS INTENDED TO INDEMNIFY THE 

INDEMNIFIED PARTIES FROM THE CONSEQUENCES OF THEIR OWN NEGLIGENCE, AS PROVIDED ABOVE.  
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, IF SUBCHAPTER C OF CHAPTER 151 OF THE TEXAS INSURANCE CODE 



 

 

APPLIES TO THIS AGREEMENT, THIS INDEMNITY PROVISION SHALL NOT APPLY TO THE EXTENT THAT IT REQUIRES 

LANDOWNER TO INDEMNIFY AN INDEMNIFIED PARTY AGAINST A CLAIM CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT, 
THE BREACH OR VIOLATION OF A STATUTE, ORDINANCE, GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION, STANDARD, OR RULE, OR 

THE BREACH OF CONTRACT OF THE INDEMNIFIED PARTY, ITS AGENT OR EMPLOYEE, OR ANY THIRD PARTY UNDER 

THE CONTROL OR SUPERVISION OF THE INDEMNIFIED PARTY, OTHER THAN LANDOWNER OR ITS AGENTS, 
EMPLOYEES OR CONTRACTORS OF ANY TIER. 

(B)  INDEMNITY FOR EMPLOYEE CLAIMS:  LANDOWNER AGREES TO AND SHALL 

INDEMNIFY THE INDEMNIFIED PARTIES FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS FOR 

BODILY INJURY OR DEATH OF ANY EMPLOYEE OF LANDOWNER OR ANY LANDOWNER 

PARTY OR THEIR RESPECTIVE AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES (COLLECTIVELY “EMPLOYEE” 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS SECTION), ACTUALLY OR ALLEGEDLY CAUSED BY, 

CONTRIBUTED TO OR ARISING OUT OF, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, THE ENCROACHMENT THE 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE ENCROACHMENT, OR THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 

LIMITED TO, CLAIMS DUE TO NEGLIGENCE, GROSS NEGLIGENCE, BREACH OF WARRANTY, 

BREACH OF CONTRACT, VIOLATION OF ANY STATUTE, RULE OR REGULATION OR OTHER 

ACT OR OMISSION BY LANDOWNER OR ANY LANDOWNER PARTY OR THEIR RESPECTIVE 

AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES OR ANY OTHER PARTY FOR WHOSE ACTS LANDOWNER IS LIABLE.  

LANDOWNER’S OBLIGATION TO INDEMNIFY SHALL APPLY EVEN IF SUCH CLAIMS ARE 

ACTUALLY OR ALLEGEDLY CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY THE STRICT LIABILITY OR 

THE ACTS, OMISSIONS, OR NEGLIGENCE OF AN INDEMNIFIED PARTY REGARDLESS OF 

WHETHER SUCH NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER ACTS OR OMISSIONS ARE ACTIVE OR PASSIVE, 

DIRECT OR INDIRECT, SOLE OR CONCURRENT.  THIS INDEMNITY AGREEMENT IS 

INTENDED TO INDEMNIFY THE INDEMNIFIED PARTIES FROM THE CONSEQUENCES OF 

THEIR OWN NEGLIGENCE, AS PROVIDED ABOVE.  

16. Reimbursement:  If at any time the existence, construction, operation, 

maintenance, relocation, or removal of the Encroachment causes Company to incur any 

cost that in any manner relates to Company’s operation, maintenance, removal, repair, 

replacement, protection, modification, construction, alteration, relocation, changing the 

size of, addition to and/or inspection of the Facilities or Easement, or the cleanup or 

handling of any spills of petroleum products (individually and collectively, “Easement 

Operations”), Landowner agrees to reimburse Company for any and all such costs that 

would not have been incurred but for the existence of the Encroachment.  Landowner 

hereby releases Company from and agrees that Company will not be held liable for any 

damages to the Encroachment arising from Easement Operations.  Any sums Landowner 

is required to pay or reimburse to Company under this Agreement shall accrue interest at 

the lesser of the maximum legal rate or 18% per annum, beginning the 30th day after 

Company makes written demand to Landowner for same, until paid in full. 

17. Insurance:  Landowner shall maintain (and require its contractors to 

maintain, during the course of work on the Encroachment) insurance of the type, in the 

amount and under the terms set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part thereof.  

Certificates of Insurance on all policies shall be furnished to Company prior to (but not 

more than 30 days prior to) the time work on the Encroachment is commenced.  Company 

shall be entitled to request and receive copies of all applicable policies and endorsements. 



 

 

18. Removal:  Company has the right to remove all or portions of the 

Encroachment as necessary in Company’s discretion in its exercise of the rights granted to 

it under the Easement.  Should Company need to remove any portion of the Encroachment 

within the Easement in order to conduct Easement Operations, Landowner shall pay for 

the cost of removing and replacing or reinstalling such removed portion of the 

Encroachment.  Company shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, or replacement to 

the Encroachment or any associated equipment and facilities that exist within the 

Easement; and Landowner releases Company from all costs, losses, or damages directly or 

indirectly arising from Company’s removal of any portion of the Encroachment. 

19. No Waiver:  The existence of the Encroachment does not constitute a waiver 

of Company’s express rights under the Easement or any other rights which Company may 

have express or implied by law or equity. 

20. No Additional Improvements:  Except for the Encroachment, Landowner 

will not at any time erect, construct, or create any additional buildings, improvements, 

structures, or obstructions of any kind on, above, or below the surface of the Easement, or 

change the grade thereof, or cause or permit these things to be done by others, without the 

express prior written consent of Company, which consent may be withheld in Company’s 

sole discretion.  No structures or improvements, including, but not limited to, fences, water 

wells, septic systems, utility poles, light poles, buildings, houses, barns, garages, patios, 

swimming pools, or concrete or asphalt slabs, are permitted on the Easement.  This 

Agreement provides only for the Encroachment, and any and all future encroachments 

require Company’s prior review and written consent. 

21. Termination:  If Landowner is in breach of any terms or conditions set forth 

in this Agreement, Company, at its option, may terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) 

days written notice to Landowner unless such breach has been cured prior to the expiration 

of such ten (10) day period.  In the event of such termination, Landowner shall immediately 

remove all of the Encroachment situated on the Easement, or if Landowner fails to remove 

all of the Encroachment, Company may, at its option, remove the Encroachment at 

Landowner’s cost and expense and without any liability whatsoever.  The failure by 

Company to exercise this termination option as to any particular breach shall not constitute 

a waiver of Company’s future right to exercise this termination option as to the same or 

any future breach. 

22. Legal Costs:  In the event that Landowner breaches any of the terms, 

covenants, or provisions of this Agreement, and Company retains counsel and/or 

commences litigation to enforce any provisions of this Agreement and prevails, the cost of 

attorneys’ fees and the attendant costs and expenses will be payable to Company by 

Landowner upon demand. 

23. Runs with the Land:  The terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement 

constitute covenants running with the land and shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of Company and Landowner, their heirs, legal representatives, successors and 

assigns.  



 

 

24. Governance and Venue:  This Agreement shall be governed by, and 

interpreted and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Texas, without regard 

to any of its principles of conflicts of laws that would make applicable the laws of any other 

jurisdiction.  Exclusive venue for any suit, action, or proceeding brought by either party in 

connection with this Agreement shall be in the state and federal courts located in Harris 

County, Texas.  The parties each hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waive, to the 

fullest extent they may legally and effectively do so, any objection they may now or 

hereafter have to the laying of venue of any suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or 

relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby in the state and federal 

courts situated in Harris County, Texas.  EACH PARTY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST 

EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO 

A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING 

RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

25. Construction:  If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement is 

deemed invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced by any rule of law or public policy, 

all other terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 

effect.  Upon such determination, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to modify this 

Agreement so as to give effect to the original intent of the parties, as closely as possible 

and in an acceptable manner to the end that the transactions contemplated hereby are 

fulfilled to the maximum extent possible. 

26. Amendment:  This Agreement shall not be amended or modified in any 

manner, including the conduct of the parties, except by written instrument duly signed by 

Company and Landowner or their respective heirs, successors or assigns. 

27. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure 

to the benefit of the Company and Landowner and their respective heirs, legal 

representatives, successors and assigns. 

28. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement, including any exhibits hereto, 

constitute the entire agreement between Company and Landowner with respect to the 

Encroachment and supersedes and replaces any prior agreement, whether written or oral, 

between the Parties with respect thereto. 

29. Counterparts:  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument and 

any of the parties hereto may execute this Agreement by signing any such counterpart.  

Delivery of an executed copy of this Agreement by facsimile, e-mail or other electronic 

means shall be effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this Agreement 

and shall be binding on the parties hereto and thereto.  Any party delivering an executed 

counterpart of this Agreement by electronic means shall also physically deliver original 

executed counterparts of this Agreement in the manner and quantity as requested by 

Company or Company’s counsel, but the failure to physically deliver such original 

executed counterparts shall not affect the validity, enforceability, and binding effect of this 

Agreement.  



 

 

30. Notices:  Any notice required by or permitted under this Agreement must 

be in writing.  Any such notice will be deemed to be delivered (whether actually received 

or not) when deposited with the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, certified 

mail, return receipt requested, and addressed to the intended recipient at the address shown 

in the opening paragraph of this Agreement.  Notice may also be given by regular mail, 

personal delivery, courier delivery, or other commercially reasonable means and will be 

effective when actually received.  Any address for notice may be changed by written notice 

delivered to the other parties as provided herein. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURES CONTAINED ON NEXT PAGE 

  



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands on the day and year 

below. 

(COMPANY) 

 

MID-AMERICA PIPELINE CO., LLC 

 

 

By:         

 Michael D. Brown 

 Agent and Attorney-in-Fact 

Date:         

 

 

 

 

(LANDOWNER) 

 

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 

 

By:         

 

Name:        

 

Title:         

 

Date:         



 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF  HARRIS § 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of 

_______________, 20__, by Michael D. Brown, Agent and Attorney-in-Fact for Mid-

America Pipeline Co., LLC, on behalf of such limited liability company. 

 

 

(seal)             

Notary Public 

 

My Commission Expires:  ______________ 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF    § 

    § 

COUNTY OF    § 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of 

______________, 20__, by ________________________, as _____________________ 

of _______________, on behalf of such ________________. 

 

(seal)             

  Notary 

Public 

 

My Commission Expires:  ______________ 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By/Return To: 

Enterprise Products 

c/o T.York – Land Department 

P.O. Box 4324 

Houston, Texas 77210-4324 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Exhibit A. (Encroachment Agreement) 



 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

Insurance Requirements 

 
A. Payor agrees to procure and maintain, and shall require all Contractors to procure and 

maintain, insurance coverages in the kinds and amounts, and with deductibles reasonably 
acceptable as set forth below: 

 
(i) Worker’s Compensation Insurance, including occupational disease coverage, in accordance with 

the benefits afforded by the statutory worker’s compensation acts applicable to the state, territory 

or district of hire, supervision or place of accident.  

(ii)  Employer’s Liability Insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 each accident, $1,000,000 

disease each employee and $1,000,000 disease policy limit. 

(iii) Commercial General Liability Insurance with a single limit of liability for bodily injury or 

property damage of $1,000,000 per occurrence ($2,000,000 Aggregate) on ISO Coverage Form 

CG 00 01 (or equivalent), such coverage to include products/completed operations liability, 

premises/operations, independent contractors, broad form bodily injury and property damage, 

personal injury, explosion, blanket contractual liability and sudden and accidental pollution 

liability.   

(iv) Business Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned, leased, rented, and 

hired motor vehicles, including coverage for loading and unloading, used in the performance of 

this Agreement, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit. 

(v) Excess Liability Insurance with limits of not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence and in the 

aggregate providing additional limits of insurance to the coverage described in subsections ii, iii 

and iv above. 

 
B. All required insurance shall: 

 
(i) except Worker’s Compensation or Employer’s Liability insurance, name Enterprise, its directors, 

employees, agents and representatives (collectively, the “Enterprise Indemnified Parties”) as an 

additional insured; 

(ii) not contain exclusions for claims arising out of the negligence of any Enterprise Indemnified 

Parties as an additional insured; and 

(iii) be endorsed as primary and non-contributing to any other insurance policies carried by Enterprise 

with respect to Payor’s operations. 

 
C. Except where prohibited by law, all policies of insurance pertaining to this Agreement which 

are procured, held or maintained by Payor or any Contractor, whether required by this 
Agreement or not, shall be endorsed to provide that the underwriters or insurers waive any 
and all rights of subrogation against the Enterprise Indemnified Parties. 
 

D. Payor shall: 
 

(i) simultaneously with its execution of this Agreement, provide to Enterprise Certificates of 

Insurance for itself and each of its Contractors on a standard ACORD form signed by an 

authorized representative evidencing the coverages, limits, endorsements and extensions required 

herein for Enterprise and each entity required to be named as an additional insured herein; and 

(ii) deliver, or require to be delivered, to Enterprise a renewal certificate not less than ten (10) days 

before policy expiration. 

Exhibit B. (Encroachment Agreement) 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1671 – To Fix a Date of Meeting for a Public Hearing on 

Amending the Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 

2018. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edger, Financial Officer 

DATE:  November 30, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

The West Branch Fire Department has entered into a purchase agreement for the purchase 

of a new fire truck.  It had been anticipated that the truck would be purchased in Fiscal 

Year 2019 but due to early payment discounts received, the truck will be purchased in FY 

2018.  The purchase will be funded by Fire Department Apparatus Reserves, operating 

budget and an intra-fund loan.  The intra-fund loan will be paid back with the sale of a fire 

truck. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1671 

 

TO FIX A DATE OF MEETING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON 

AMENDING THE CURRENT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2018. 

 

WHEREAS, budget estimates may be amended and increased as the need arises to 

permit appropriation and expenditure of unexpended cash balances on hand and 

unanticipated revenues; and; 

WHEREAS, such amendments may be considered and adopted at any time during 

the fiscal year covered by the budget (but prior to May 31) by filing the amendments and 

upon publishing them and giving notice of the public hearing in the manner required in the 

State Code; and; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council intends to amend the budget to provide for the 

following:   Purchase of a fire truck. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. This Council shall meet on the 18th day of December, 2017, at the 

City Council Chambers located at 110 N. Poplar Street, in the City, at 7:00 o’clock p.m., 

at which time and place a public hearing will be held on the question of amending the 

current budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 

Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to give notice of the proposed 

action for amending the current budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the time 

when and place where the said meeting will be held, by publication at least once, and not 

less than 10 nor more than 20 days before the date of said meeting, in a legal newspaper 

published at least once weekly, and of general circulation in the City.  The notice shall be 

in substantially the following form: 

 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

  

AMENDMENT OF FY2017-2018 CITY 

BUDGET  

 Form 653.C1      

 The City Council of 

West 

Branc

h in CEDAR & JOHNSON 

County, 

Iowa 

 will meet at 

City Council Chambers, 110 N Poplar St, 

West Branch, Iowa  

 at 

7:00 

p.m. 

o

n 

12/18/201

7   

  (hour)  (Date)   

 

,for the purpose of amending the current budget of the city for the fiscal 

year ending June 30, 2018 

      (year) 

  



 

 

by changing estimates of revenue and expenditure appropriations in the following programs 

for the reasons given.  Additional details are available at the City Clerk’s Office showing 

revenues and expenditures by fund type and by activity.  

  
       

       

    

Total 

Budget  

Total 

Budget 

    

as 

certified Current 

after 

Current 

    

or last 

amended 

Amendmen

t 

Amendmen

t 

 

Revenues & Other Financing 

Sources     

 

Taxes Levied on 

Property  1 1,635,553 0 1,635,553 

 

Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-

Levy Year 2 0 0 0 

 

Net Current Property 

Taxes  3 1,635,553 0 1,635,553 

 

Delinquent Property 

Taxes  4 0 0 0 

 TIF Revenues  5 250,000 0 250,000 

 Other City Taxes  6 196,308 0 196,308 

 Licenses & Permits  7 41,897 0 41,897 

 

Use of Money and 

Property  8 4,150 0 4,150 

 Intergovernmental  9 1,070,407 0 1,070,407 

 Charges for Services  

1

0 1,082,074 0 1,082,074 

 Special Assessments  

1

1 0 0 0 

 Miscellaneous  

1

2 40,910 0 40,910 

 

Other Financing 

Sources  

1

3 3,517,568 0 3,517,568 

 Tranfers In  

1

4 614,146 0 614,146 

 

Total Revenues and 

Other Sources  

1

5 8,453,013 0 8,453,013 

       

 

Expenditures & Other Financing 

Uses     

 Public Safety  

1

6 782,284 540,000 1,322,284 

 Public Works  

1

7 479,776 0 479,776 

 

Health and Social 

Services  

1

8 0 0 0 

 Culture and Recreation  

1

9 676,552 0 676,552 

 

Community and 

Economic 

Development  

2

0 132,770 0 132,770 

 

General Government  

2

1 188,457 0 188,457 



 

 

 Debt Service  

2

2 513,908 0 513,908 

 Capital Projects  

2

3 4,541,269 0 4,541,269 

 

Total Government Activities 

Expenditures 

2

4 7,315,016 540,000 7,855,016 

 

Business Type / 

Enterprises  

2

5 968,447 0 968,447 

 

Total Gov Activities & 

Business Expenditures  

2

6 8,283,463 540,000 8,823,463 

 Transfers Out  

2

7 614,146 0 614,146 

 

Total 

Expenditures/Transfers 

Out  

2

8 8,897,609 540,000 9,437,609 

 

Excess Revenues & Other Sources 

Over     

 

(Under) Expenditures/Transfers 

Out for Fiscal Year 

2

9 -444,596 -540,000 -984,596 

       

 

Beginning Fund 

Balance July 1  

3

0 2,074,943 523,220 2,598,163 

 

Ending Fund Balance 

June 30  

3

1 1,630,347 -16,780 1,613,567 

       

 

Explanation of increases or decreases in revenue estimates, appropriations, 

or available cash:  
       
 This expenditure for a firetruck will come from reserves and an inter-fund loan that will be 

paid back upon the sale of a firetruck in the next fiscal year.  
 
 
 

 

There will be no increase in tax levies to be paid in the current fiscal year named above.  

Any increase in expenditures set out above will be met from the increased non-property tax 

revenues and cash balances not budgeted or considered in this current budget year.  This 

will provide for a balanced budget. 

  
   

       

    Gordon R. Edgar 

    City Clerk/Finance Officer 

 

 * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 18th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: To Consider adding “GIS capabilities to Public 

Works” to our list of Goals and Objectives. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director 

DATE:  November 27, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND: 

City utility maps are one of the most vital components utilized by Public Works in 

maintaining the City infrastructure. Currently City utility maps are maintained in paper 

form. A copy of each, water and sewer is kept in four of the Public Works vehicles for use 

in locating, marking, to assist in hydrant flushing, for planning use and for use in the event 

of a main break. Any updates to the maps are noted and hand drawn on to the maps.  

 

The GIS technology would allow the City to maintain and update the infrastructure 

mapping. All existing maps would be made electronic with the ability to alter, add or 

remove data to the maps. This would allow easier access to up to date information when 

planning for development, upgrades to the system, planning for capital projects and as a 

record of repairs.  

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Consensus to add to Goals and Objectives list 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

WWW.MID  
WWW.MIDLANDGIS.COM  

 Public Works Director  

110 N. Poplar   

PO Box 218  

West Branch, IA 52358  

  

Dear Matt,  
  
Midland GIS Solutions respectfully submits this proposal to the City of West Branch, 

Iowa to provide professional GPS and GIS mapping services. Midland GIS is ready to 

assist in your efforts to develop an accurate GIS program for the City’s sanitary sewer 

and water networks.  
  
Midland GIS Solutions proposes developing a comprehensive GIS program for West 

Branch for use in maintaining and managing the City’s utility infrastructure assets. The 

following characteristics make Midland GIS Solutions uniquely capable of overseeing 

this project for West Branch:  
 
• Midland GIS offers complete utility asset management solutions, from accurate 

GPS data collection and GIS mapping, to web-based GIS solutions with editing 

capabilities for easy and efficient system maintenance.  
 
• Midland GIS Solutions has provided GPS and GIS services to over 150 cities and 

utilities in the Midwest. Our dedicated field staff has GPS located hundreds of 

thousands of utility assets for seamless GIS integration for use in utility 

maintenance, daily workflow management and engineering models.  
 

• Midland GIS will dedicate an experienced project team of GPS Field Staff, GIS 

Technicians, GIS Specialists and Analysts, Programmers, Professional Land 

Surveyors and ArcGIS Server developers to ensure project efficiency and overall 

product quality.  
 

• Kirk Larson, Sr. Vice President, will personally manage and oversee your GIS 

project, which ensures open and complete communication throughout project 

development and implementation.  
 

Thank you for the opportunity to present our Company for this very important project. 

Our team of professionals has the experience and capabilities to make your GIS program 

successful and stands ready to form a partnership with the City of West Branch in that 

success.  
  

Respectfully Submitted,   

MIDLAND GIS SOLUTIONS  

  
 

Chad Sparks, Business Development    

  



 

 

 
 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Continuation of U.S. Geological Survey stream and precipitation 

monitoring on the West Branch Wapsinonoc Creek 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

In 2015, the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) installed three streamgages and two rain 

gages in the West Branch Wapsinonoc Creek watershed.  The monitoring was conducted 

for several reasons and provides multiple benefits to the City of West Branch.  The data 

collected by the streamgages and rain gages were used to calibrate and validate a flood 

inundation model in preparation by the USGS.  The gages also provide real-time 

information, allowing city officials and residents to view current levels in the creek and 

rainfall data at multiple locations to be better prepared for the possibility of flooding.  These 

monitoring locations can also assist city officials in implementing flood mitigation 

practices.  Historical data from these locations will also form the foundation for various 

studies.  Water-Quality data have also been collected as part of national USGS programs 

and local studies.  For example, a USGS national researcher has been conducting research 

on the temporal distribution of agricultural chemicals in streams at the College Street 

Bridge.  All data are quality-assured according to published USGS polices and are legally 

defensible.  The USGS is proposing to continue collecting raingage data on Baker Avenue 

and streamgage data at College Street.  In effort to keep costs to a minimal to the City, it is 

recommended to discontinue the two streamgages just north of the dog park on Hoover 

Trail and focus collection to a year-round effort on the Baker Avenue raingage and the 

College Street streamgage.  These locations are most beneficial in future flood inundation 

map development.  These two sites will also provide a multitude of other benefits to the 

City such as real-time rain and water level information, increased flood preparedness, 

various water-quality data, and general public awareness for the watershed.   

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seeking City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 4, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: To Consider Freedom Rock Funding / Sponsorship  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 30, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditure that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that are related to council approved day to day operational tasks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter a date.  
 Click here to enter text. 
 
 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seeking Council Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 


